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TRAPPE METHODIST CHURCH
1781 1954

In 1912 nnder the pastorate of the Reverend Jokn €1 B. Hepkins, the
Lebanon Methodist Episcopal Chureh celebrated its 100th anniversary with
a series of special serviees, and the publishing of a booklet recording the
growth of the ehuren. Yet, Methodism in Trappe precceded the Lebanon
church by 81 years. According to the information cermpiled by Mr. Hep-
kins in 1912, “the Society of DMethodists was organized in Trappe about
1781, thns giving our united church of today a heritage of 173 vears.

The history of Methodism in Trappe runs parallel to that of American
Methodism, and is marked by divisions, and o re-uniting, Prior to 1850
a Methodigt Protestant Chureh was established, and in 1866 o Meth-
odist Episcopal Churvch, South, came into being. Then, with the uniting
conference of 1930, the Methodist people of thus community absolved their
differences and once more became a united congregation, We point with
pride to our fore-fathers and accept this héritage us a sacred trust to be
preserved for all the future penervations that will follow in their footsteps.

Since only a few copies of Mr. Hopkin's historical record have bheen
preserved, we are reprinting it here in the belief that il ineludes a wealth
of Informution that could not be vompiled today,

HISTORY

{of Lebanon M. E. Chursh)
1812 1912
By Rev, John C. B. Hopkins

The Socicty of Methodists was orpanized in Trappe about 1781, just
eight years after the first Methodist Conference was held in America.
There were only 10 traveling preachers reported at this Conference (17730
and 1160 members, 500 of which were in Maryland and G660 in Philadelphia
New York, New Jersey and Virginia.

The lot on which Trappe Church now stands was purchuased of Jesse
Dullikin, April 21, 1784, for five zhillings, on condilion that ne ene be al-
luwed tio preach in the meeting house 1o be erected exeept suel as were
appointed by the yvearly Conforence of Methodist o preach and expound
God's word, and to preach no other doetrine than that contained in John
Wesley's Notes on the New Testament and four volumes of sermons,

It was a great undertaking and a maller of mueh importanee to
Luild even a modest chapel in those days, but Solomon Martin, Philip
Maclkey, Abner Parrott, William vown, Henry Marbin, William Alexander,
Trancis Chaplain, Jameg Mullikin and James Chaplain, with hearts moved
by God's spirit and eves that could penetrate the fature said with Ruskin,
“When we huild, let us think we build forever — let it not be for present
cgelipht nor for present use alone—Ilet 1t bo sueh worl as onr descondante
will thank us for and let us think, as we lav stone on seone that g time is
to conie when these stones will be held saered becanse onr hands have
touched them, and Lhat men will gay as they look apon the labar and wroi-
ght substances of them. ‘Sco this oul father «id for us' 7

The building was 35 by 50 feet, two stories high, with a gullery on
two sides and one end.  The main enlrance was at the South end. The col-
ored peopie had no chureh then and were permilted to be members of this
church, and had a door on the west side which led to their gallery. The
Church was built of briek, the walls being 22 inches Lhick and required nine
vears for its erection having been hegun in 1803 and completad in 1812, Pre-
vious to ils campletion the prople mel from Lime o lime in private homes.

Talbot County at this time was a cirenit and Grst appears in the min-
utes in 1781, Menry Willis and Jeremiah Lambert were the ministers in
charge and were located at laston.  The Chureh then was the best in
the County.

Un the Uth of June, 1804 in pursuance and by the authority of the
Aet of Assembly entitled “An Act to Incorporate certain persons in every
Christian Church or Congregation in this state” the free white male per-
sons, above 21 years of age, belonping to the Society of Lebanon Chapel,
assembled at Lthe said Chapel for the purpose of electing cevtain sobor and
disereat persons, not less than 6 or more than 13, to be consgtlituled a body
polilic or corporate, Lo act as trustees in the name and behalf of Lebanon
Chapel and to manage the estate, property, intercst and inheritance of the
Ewmne;

William Brown, Selomon Martin, James Chaplain, William Jenkins,
Bienjamin Mullikin, Samuel Abbptt, and Abner Parrvolt received the maj-
ority vate.
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Un Mavch 9, 18587, the trustees, Charles B, Mullikin, John F. Bluilli-
kin, T. E. Lloyd, Peter B Mallikin, H. M, Boreidge, John D, Pastoriield
dolin Baggs and other male members of the Church met to consider the
practicallity vf remodoeling ayml vepaiving the Chuereh. Bro. Charles R.
Blullikin proposed that #9000 in subscriptions be oblained which muotion wat
cariivd, and building committée appointed.  (Later a deficieney of §65
was found and the following brothers pledged lhese amounts; John F,
Mullikin $20, Montgowery Lloyd $10, €. R. Mullikin $10, John Baggs
S12.500 0 Wo dump, $12.50). In 1865 Trappe and Oxford were set off from
Easton and made a eirenit with four Churehes. Rewv. John Brandredth
Wils SeNt as pastor.

Just. one yedar previous te thiz Rev. J, B. Mereitt was sent as pastor
amdl Rew, T, E. Martindale, who i2 now one of the ablest ministers of the
Wilmington Conference, as Junior preacher,  Even at this time Dr. Martin-
ale wave evidence of remarkable ability., In 128{) he was appointed Pre-
sidine Elder of Easton District and because of his wisdem and manifest
interest soon won the hearts of the people.

In 1867 the trustees met Lo discuss the advisability of allowing mo-
misevous gtting doving public service, and the matter was of so much im-
portincee that it had to be laid vver for further vonsiderytion,

During the pastorate of Rev, E. 1L Hynson (1874) the first organ was
sepured and placed i the Choureh. Some of the older members were sor-
fnusly oppesed to sueh an &etion but the younger element prevailed.

in the wear 1376 Trappe Clreuil consisted of the congregations of
Trappe, Oxford, Landing Neck and Belingbrook., The parsonage was a
vevited house located on the mam street of the town of Trappe and -
Jouining the home of Dr, Lloyd, now deceased.  The house was old and in-
convenient, the Tot low wnd always feoded with water Juring heavy rains.
Hickness in the pastor's family wuas frequent.

These conditions created a weneral desire for a bettor homme and im-
proved suvroundings for the minister and his Tamily.  With the approval
ad vo-operation of the oflicials, the Rev, B H. Adams who was in charge
of the eireait, began an active canwass for o subseription to boild a aew
parsonage. In three days he had obtained from Samuel Bratt of Oxtovd,
Chanrles Sherwood of Lending Neel, and Davis Clark of Trappe a subserip-
tionr of §200 each. These subseriptions so inspired Lthe men and women of
the Cireuit 4s to insure the early compleltion of the vnterprise. At the
aieieterly conference held in early Suwmmer, John T Mullikin, Charles 1,
Muliikin, Charles Sherwood and Samuel Bratt were appointed to select
sl purchase a site and proceed to build. A lot opposite g,lhfc Church wus
pmirchased from Mrs. Rebecea Mulliking wife of Joseph Muallikin,  Trees
ol excellent oak and pine were donated by various members of the Churely
which supplicd suflicient material for framing, feneine and out buildings,
With a substription apm oxiniating $1100.00 baing paid promptly, waterials
was plaved on Lhe lot, and plans selveted for the building, The iadies of
Lhe several vongregaliong arvanved to provide for new earpets snd wmddi-
tionn! Ffurniture.  Ealy in Janusry of the siome Couterence Year the
parsonage was ready Tor gecupaney and the pastor and his family were in-
stgtled, with o general “housce-warmine’ undor the divection of liis Faith-
tul [lock.

In 1881 Rev. F. €, MaeRoveley wns appuinted vastor of Trappe Charge
and served the work faithiully for two years, He seon learned that the
lve question with the people was o new churen, The old Choreh, a brick
stracture with a hasgemoent, was in bad repuir, the basement being entirvely
useless beeause of excessive damoness o al<o “ousl that the peonle ware
divided into two classes, the “"Woe cang’ and the “We can'ts”, Without
clving publie notice he begun quictly o ask for subscriptions and moet with
wEet oneetracerment, e was ble Lo presgnt such a favorable roport Gn
the Board of Trustees, John . Muollikin, Edward M. Nownam, J. . 3ulli-
kin, . B, Mallikin, C. I Mallikin, 6. W. Frampton and Robert I Muili-
I:in, that he was authorized to secure plans for a new Church from our
(Chaveh Extension Boavrd, It swas at st proposed to bwild a frame stone-
tury but this was over ruled by public sentiment, and plans secured for a
boael: buildine. At a neeting of the Board of Trustees; held October 24,
1%x1 it was vesolved to begin av unee buildine the new Chureh. €, 1,
Mutlikin, John I Mullikin, and 1 1. Kemp swere appointed a building
comnittee,

At that time of our need the aflicial members of the Methodist Episeo-
pal Church South; with the cordial support of the pastor, Rev, B. 8. Highley
came o our help with a fraternal invitation to waership with them until our
pew huuse should be rewdy. The arrangement betwoeen the two pastors was
that they should preach allernately, reversiug the vmder egeh Sunday, but as
Drather Highley was abeent about thres monthe on business eonnected with
s father’s estate, it 1ell to Brother MarSopreley’s lat to do the nreaching
cring his absance,
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The building of the new Chureh was slow work as the old Church hadl
to be torn down an d the bricks cleaned at they swere to be used in construei-
ing the wall of the new house. The cleaning of the bricks was done by
negro men and boys, a large number participating in the work. The fact
that the walls were built of old bricks made iC necessary to cover them on
the outside with cement; this not vnly covered the unsighly walls, bul gave
them the appearance of being constructed of cement bloeks,

At the first service held in the Chureh, the cost #3000, was provided
tor exeept §750. The formal dedication wag held in July 1883, doving the
pastorate of Rev. R. K. Stephenson, when the entire cost was paid except
$500 and $250 of that amount was provided for.

Mr. John Coburn who had been Superintendent of the Sunday Sehool,
died the year the corner stonc was laid, Ilis widow, Mys lmnu'l Coburn
oave, in honor of his memnory, (he handsome aliar-rail which now adorns
the church.

Dr. Stephenson rewaine:] here as ]mtlm‘ threce years and by his geninl
epirit and earnest efforts wen a host of a friends. He was very ~L|Lce'~:~'|".'-l
in building up the Master's kingdon. In 1909 he was appointed & Superin-
tenden!, of Easton District and served in this capacity one vearv, when he
was transferied to the Dover District.

Mrs. Mary A. Jenkins, who was a most faithful and liberal member
of our Chuwreh for more than sixty vears honorad the memory of lier hus-
band (whe died in 18667 by presenting to the Church a handsome marhle
pulpit stand, and later on one of the finesl reed vrgans that could be pur-
chased, in memory of hor son, George M. Jenking.

The hus haned, Mr. Georee o Jenkins who was w member and trustee [
many vears waﬂs heloved by all who knew him.

On Mayv 2, 1802, at the supgpestion of Mrs, Ella Newnam, a small come-
pany of women met at Lhe home of Mrs, J. B, Tarbution to organize a soc-
iety which was to L:-v the interior of the Chureh in vepair. It was called
the Pearl Gatherer's “w:w'm voand the dues were fixed st five conts a month,
Thiz scemed a small heginning bul the society increasged rapidiy in mem-
bership and during the 20 years of its existenee has paid out the sum of
%1.291, for the benfit and improvement of the Church. The Society has had
only thrm, presidants, Mrs. Sallie Dexter, Miss Clara Parvrott, and Mrs,
Maude Slavohier.

On Oclober 20th, 1902, the Bpard of Trustecs, m recognition of the
gift of M. Edwin W. Hopkins to Lebanon M. E. Church, in memory of his
sainted mather passed the following vesolution: ‘In as much ae the il
aml eonersus feeling of Fdwin W. Hopkins prompted him o donate and
pace an pur Chureh o beautifol veflecting chandelicsr.

Bo it reselved, that we extend to Mr. Hopkins our vespectful and sin-
core eralitude for his splendid gift in mimory of a Christian mother who
honored the Chureh she Ioved and of which we now form o part, and we
will Bold in saceed memory her wodly life whisrh may prove o be a hgiit
to heckon us onward Ll we mect in the Chureh Triomphant.’

Rev, Wobert iloo came to Trappe in 18 and during the three yewsrs
of his stay proved himself to be a moest worthy servant of Jesus Christ
In 1904 he was azain sent to Tranpe and remained two vears,  On Fehin-
ary 241h, 1905 his wife, who had been in poor health for more than a
vear, passed quistly to hey reward.  THew fitting that she ghould go from
the parsonage al Trappe where the people cherished for her a warm
affeetion.  She had been o Chrigtian from childhood and always stood in
the front rank of every Torward movement

The Chureh and r-mmmnm- suffered a =r|m| fo=s in the death of Mr.
Jolm F. Mullikin who dep: this life July 7, 1905, aged B years. 1le
was a lrustee of the C]H[t'{'h fm sixty consecubive years, also leader of the
Friday night elass as lene as it existed .

During Lhe pastornte of Rev, Harey T ‘Stewart (1906-1008) the in-
terior of the Chureh was heautified by a metal eeiling and walls, put on at
noecost of §540. The Pearl Gatherer's Secicty, ag usual, came with willing
heart and hand and contributed largely to this capse.  While Trappe was
Brother Stewart’s first charge, the peanle found him to be an earnest and
untiving worker aleng all lines of the Church work,

The Churel and entire eommunity woere greally shocked to hear of
the death of Rev. Flovd 10, Wexton an a March 5th, 1908, Brother Bloston
serverd Trappe chavee Tor three yearg (1000-1002), during the mest tryving
time of the Chereh's history. e was a wond preacher, elear, svmpalhetie,
and serivtural.  His great aim in life was to so preach the Word that
Lelievers micht be strenghened and sinners econverted to Christ, . .

In Mev 1911, our town and community was privilesed to witness one
of the groatest vevivals of veligion in its history. A sevies of meetings to
continue only eight dave because of the husy season for the farmers, lasted
three weeolks, during which time more than sixly persons were convertoed.
Fortv-fve of this number woe added to the Chuareh,
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As we review the past and look with hopeful eyss toward the futnre,
we would pour sut eur hearts in the prayer so beautifully expressed by the
et

S0 Jesus with Thy chureh abide,

For oft her faith is tried;

O keep her patient to endure

And ever trust Thy promise siure.

Tde Thou her Saviour, Lord and Guide;

B3¢ with hier all the days

Till, safe Trom errorv's devious ways

She sines thy praise, : ,

(1 am indebted for help in the prepaving of this book to Rev. R. H.
Adams, Rev. F. €. MacSpreley, Hobert F. Mullikin, and Mys, Kate Framp-

Lon.) J. 45 B He
In the years that followed this ministry of Rev, Hopkins, Trappe was
served by many faithful and devout laymen and pastors. It is not possible
ro piention here a specific incident of eutstanding impertance thal was the
highlight of each succeeding ministry, In the next 27 years the labors of the
men who werked in the church bore fruit.  Another interior renovation
was completed under the pastorate of the Reverend O, B. Reed, and thr-
dorhout this period men were still won for Christ, to take their places in
Lhe membership of this chureh. It is sulllcient ta say that under the minis-
tres of sueh men as the Reverend D, J. Moore, J. H. Whedbee, W, D,
Short, G. B, Wood, J. 1. Geoghegan, and others, the church praspered and
rflled its mission to its membership and the community. When Method-
lsm was ready to reunite, this church and her sister church, Trinity, were
pmong the first to make the spivit of unity a working rveality,

TRINITY M. E. CHURCH, 50UTH
1866 1939

L B

The division of seniiments brought about by the Civil War, left its
piark upon Trappe, as it did upon so many communities. Acueording to the
fow recoprds that have been preserved by private individuals, a Southern
Viethodist Conpreintion was mectiy together as early as 1866, when
the Revercnd F. A, Mercer wus appointed to the charge. On May 22, 1867,
a deed wug recorded placing the properly of this group in the hands of
Samuel N. Haddaway, Chuarles W. Haddaway, Shadraek Lednum, Nicklas
VWillis; Silas AL Simpson, Edwired H.o Leonawd, Jumes S, Chaplain, Orson
Core, and Greenback Ozman as Trostees of Trinity M. E. Church, South
tty 1883, the church was well established and under the pastorate of J. W.
Cirabli, f-‘al,ilh Chapel, in Bruceville, joined with the chureh at Trappe to
form a civewit

In March, 1888, the trustees purchased a building and plov of land,
loeated west of Main Sweeet, frem Dr. Junies 8. Chapluin, to be used
as a parsonage. This building is still stunding teday and is the property of
the united chureh.

The Church coutinued rendering aetive service to the community thr-
ough the yvears. In 1915 it wius deeided that the facilities needed improve-
ment, and under the guidanee of the Revercnd L. B, Bobbit, the church
vas completely renovuled. Stained glass windows were purchased, the pews
rehuilt;  fresh coat of palnt applied and a new crystal chandelier, all of
which did mueh to improve the interior,
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Then, in the year of 1939 and 1940, in the true spivit of Methodism,
Trinity merged its congiepation with that of Lebanon, reaching a complete
merger sogn after the peneval plan was propesed. It is here that the story
of Trinity M. E. Church, South ends. One more phase in the growth of
Methodism in Trappe.

TRAPPE METHODIST PROTESTANT CHURCH
It ig known that, prior to [850, a4 Methodist Protestant Church was
cstablished in Trappe this chureh formed a part of a civeuit with the Upper
Iambury M. P. and Windy Hill M. . Churehes.  Apparently thore iz no
complete record of pastors or events that can he recorded here. The bhesl
available local sources believe that it had ceased to fonction by 1914,

TRAPPE METHODIST CHURCH

With the merging of the congregations of Lebanon and Trinity, Meth-
odism in this community once more became a solid vnit. For a time the
seyvices ware held in both chuvrches, but soon . a decisien was made to Use
the Lebanon Building for all worship serviees.  All property was transfer-
red to a single board of trustees, and was retained for use. later the
Trinity DBuilding was disposed of at publie avetion and last year it was
destroyed by fire. Unrder the pastorate of the Reverend R. J. Cooke the
stained glass windews were removed from Trinity Church and placed in
the Lébanon Church, when at the same time more windows were addrd.
Then in 1949, the interior of the Lebanon building was completely renova-
ted, at a ¢ost of $8000; the finished product being what we see here today.
This was completed under the guidance of the Ileverend H. N. Nicklas,

We cannot single out every accomplishment oft the six ministers that
have served the united chureh, sinee 19490, but this record would not be
complete without an expression of thanks Lo the Reverend H. H. Schauver,
who guided our church through the war years, to H. R. MecDade for his
labors here, to R. J. Cooke, IT. N. Nicklas and R, G. Given for their loyalty
and devoted service,

These men and cl of their predecessors have iried, by their ministries,
to catch the spirit of our forefalhers and to make our chuvrch & useful
part of the Kingdom of God. Il is impoessible in so few pages to list the
name of every minister and laywa, whe in a eventury and threc-quarters
have préserved the Moethodist Chureh in this community, Looking back
seross the years we can but rve-ccho the words of Ruskin as we examine our
hervitage - "See this our fathers did for us.”’

As we reflect upon the past let us also keep an eve on the future, We
have been brought to the present day by sincere devotion and lovaity to a
causze. All of us musi make this same cause a part of life, and continue to
erow and progress in the spirit of our heritags.

PASTORAL RECORD

1800 Williarn Hardesty, Geo, Armstrong

ik}l James Dbloore, Richard Lyon

18082 James Moore, Daniel Urouch, Robert Sparks
1803 Daniel Croueh

1504 James Smith, Waulter Fountain

1805 John MeGloskey, Wm. Palemus

18014 Joseph Scull, John Miller

1807 William Fox, W. B. Lacey

1808 John Wilbank. James Bateman

18049 James Ridgway, George Harman

1510 ' John McCloskey, Avra Melvin

1811 Jahn Sharpley, Thomas Miller

15812 William Bishop, John Emory

1813 John Smith; James Aken

1814 James Moore, Lott Warfield

1215 John Waolson, Richard Petherbridge

1816 Wiltliam Ross, Walter Fountain

1517 Stephen Martindale, William uinn

1518 Rev, William, Joseph Scull

1¥19 Thomas Ware, Alwood While

TR James Smith, William Allen

1821 James Smith, Edward Stehpenson

1Re2-23 Georpe Wolley, Solomon Higwing

1824 Willianv Bishop, T. J. Thompson

1825 William Bishop, William Rider

1826 George Reed, Levi Scott

1827-28 Lot Warfield, T, J. Thompson, James Hanson
1820-30 Goovge Cookeman, John Henry, Robert Kemp

1831 Manlove Hazol, John B. Hapgany
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Levi Storks,

Shepherd Dranc,
Wilitam  Allen,
John Bell,

James Allen,

B.- 17,

James
G. D Carrow,
Samuvl
John T
John T. Hazzard,
William 11,
William 1.
Churles Ilit,
Charles Hiil, L.
John 1)

John
John W.
Enos R, Williams, George Wittshire,
Milton D,
Levi Storks, B, I0
Price, Wllllcun [ink
Thomas J. Quigley,
James A, Massey,
A. Massey,

Anuider, L
Jdlazzard, 1. 11,
R. W.
Brisbane, J. P. Duhamel
Brisbane, J. M.
Wi,
. Hughes

Curts, J.

T. Cooper
b, Curtis,
Henderson,

Kurtz
Price

Charles 1, Thompson, L.
Thompsoen

Charles 1.
. Ickerson

J. Caldwell

H. Alday
Lighlbourne
Todd

Huison
T. Quinn

12, Bryun

Ju].u D, Curtis, Daniel George

E. Miller, T, E,

Skinner

Elijah ‘mliuz, L. C. Ridgway
J. B. Merritt, N M. Brown
J. B. Merritg, T. I, Martindale

John HBrandeth
T. 8. Williams

LEBANON M. E.

1870-72
I873-74
187T5-TT
18TE-80
1581-82
| n83-85
15356-88
| 529-90
184l
15i2-93
1504-906
13099
1398
Laiu-1900
P90 -0
TH0d-U5
1906-08
L&Y
1910-12
1918
114-15
1UL6-17
161%-19
1420
192124
1425
LUug-28
129-31
14932
i =t

Edward Davis
E. 11. Hynson

B. H. Aduams

W. N, Warner

I, . MuaeSoreley
. K. Stephenson
A. P, P'rettyman
F. d. Cochran

W. R. Melfarland
George 3. Conaway
Rohert Rue

J. 1. Prousc

John L. Nelson
T. . Fabler

. T Bloxton
Robere Roe
Harry D. Stewart
J. M. Kelso

J. . B. Hopkins
C. T. Jones

1}, J. Moore

J. D, Reese

J. H, Whedbee
A. P. Prettvman
0. J. Moore

W, ). Short

G. K. Wood

J. M. Geohegan
0. B. Reed

D. B. Prettyman

John W, Pearson

Isaue Adking, George W. Barton
Charles Shoch

John Ruth

John D. Long

William Wise, Thomas Hickey
Jushau Humphreys, L.
Joshau Humphreys,

L. Asa

TRINITY M, E.,, SOUTH

186G6G-07
|68
eIV
I8TU-T3
74
1875-TH
1877
1878
187 4-30
ledl-52
lgmianl
L838G-8T
lsas-58Y
18491-92
1895-94
1895-47
1898-1901
1u02-u4
1905-07
JHOE-1 1
Ml E-14
191517
1918-21
1822
1924
1424
1925-80
1034-57
198040

P, A, Mercer

L. B. Jones

J. M. Grandin

V. C. Maloy

J. R. Smith

B. W. Bond

P. B. Smith
Josiah FH. Temple
J. L. Kibler

B. 8. Highley

J. W, Grubb

J. M, Follingshee
W. M. Wagner
W. L. Uully

F‘ M. Totten

W. Mark

. R. Mays

. M. Reed

W. Mitchell
W. Grubb

A, Rood

. B. Bobhbit

. B. Sapp

V. Whitehurst
. M. SBarver

. L. Reiter

. T. Fairbanks
5. Swartz

. 1. Dulaney
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TRAPPE METHODIST CHURCH

1940
Tohd 1-d4
1915
18906G-47
1048-51
1952
1953

D. B. Prettyman
H. H., Schauer
H. R. Melrade

]. J, Cooke

H. N. Nicklas

R. G. Given

J. G. Stapleton



